
 
 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL 
Agenda 
 

Date Thursday 25 November 2021 
 

Time 5.30 pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Constitutional Services  in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Constitutional Services  Tel. 
0161 770 5151 or email constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk 
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Monday, 22 
November 2021. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the 
press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a 
meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL IS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 Councillors Davis (Chair), Brownridge (Vice-Chair), C. Gloster, Salamat 
and Woodvine 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

Public Document Pack

mailto:constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2) 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 30th September are attached for approval. 

6   Public Speaking at Traffic Regulation Order Panel Meetings (Pages 3 - 8) 

7   S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990, S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 , Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map and Statement Modification order. 
FPs 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton. (Pages 9 - 18) 

 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to the making of a Public Path 
Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order for Footpaths 46, 
47 & 48 Chadderton at Broadway, Chadderton. 

 



 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL 
30/09/2021 at 5.30 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Davis (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge (Vice-Chair), C. Gloster, Salamat and 
Woodvine 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Alan Evans Group Solicitor 
 Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 
 Liam Kennedy Highways & Engineering 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 29th July 
2021 be approved as a correct record. 
 

6   PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION AND DEFINITIVE MAP AND 
STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER - FOOTPATH 107 
SADDLEWORTH (PART) AT AMBROSE LODGE, SANDY 
LANE, DOBCROSS  

 

The Panel gave consideration to a report that sought approval 
for the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order for Footpath 107 Saddleworth 
(part) at Ambrose Lodge, Sandy Lane, Dobcross. 
 
The application was received from the resident of Ambrose 
Lodge, Sandy Lane for the diversion of Footpath 107 
Saddleworth (part) which passed through the garden and farm 
fields adjacent to the residence. The existing route ran parallel 
to the stone wall and crossed the driveway access, where it 
crossed a step stile through a hedge line proceeding directly 
across the front yard area of Ambrose Lodge and continued 
through the adjacent field. The applicant proposed a diversion 
along the boundary of their land into their adjacent field which 
would give a clear delineated path for the public to use. The 
distance travelled around the diversion would be minor and 
inconvenience to members of the public would be minimal. Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 
Options considered: 
Option 1: to approve the recommendation. 
Option 2: not to approve the recommendation.  
 
RESOLVED that, as per the recommendation, the Public Path 
Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order 
for Footpath 107 Saddleworth (part) be approved under section 
119 of the Highways Act 1980 and section 53A of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981. 
 
 
 

The meeting started at 5.30 pm and ended at 5.36 pm 
 

Page 2



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
The purpose of the report is to seek the introduction of a formal procedure for public 
speaking at meetings of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel. 
 
 
Recommendations 
It is recommended that Council be requested to adopt the procedure for public speaking at 
meetings of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel detailed in Appendix 1 and include the 
procedure in Part 8 Appendix 3 of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKING AT TRAFFIC REGULATION 
ORDER PANEL MEETINGS 
 
Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor A Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
 
Officer Contact: Director of Legal Services 
 
Report Author: Alan Evans, Group Solicitor 
Ext. 3019 
 
25 November 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 

  2 

 
 
Traffic Regulation Order Panel 25 November 2021 
 
Council  15 December 2021 
  
 
Public Speaking at Traffic Regulation Order Panel Meetings 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 Whenever the Council proposes to make a traffic regulation order it is required to give 

public notice of the proposals and consider any representations it receives before deciding 
whether to make the order.  Under the Council’s Constitution the Traffic Regulation Order 
Panel is responsible for considering any representations made in respect of a proposed 
traffic regulation order and deciding whether or not to make the order.  Unlike the position 
with planning applications being considered by the Planning Committee, there is currently 
no formal procedure for permitting public speaking at meetings of the Traffic Regulation 
Order Panel.    
 

1.2 In recent years persons making representations on proposed traffic regulation orders have 
often asked to speak at the meeting of the Panel considering the proposals they have 
made representations about and in the absence of a formal procedure it has been left to 
the discretion of the Chair of the Panel whether to allow those persons to speak.  The 
public are familiar with their right to speak at meetings of the Planning Committee and are 
often surprised that they have no similar right to speak at meetings of the Traffic 
Regulation Order Panel.  
 

1.3 To ensure consistency with the Planning Committee procedures and to enhance public 
participation in decision making it is recommended that a formal procedure to allow public 
speaking at meetings of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel be introduced.  The proposed 
procedure is included at Appendix 1 and is based on the protocol for public speaking at 
meetings of the Planning Committee.  The procedure will allow speaking by one supporter 
and one objector who have made representations in respect of a proposed traffic 
regulation order.  As with the procedure at Planning Committee, the public will be 
restricted to 3 minutes to make representations.  Ward Members will also be permitted to 
speak on traffic regulation order proposals and will be allowed to speak for up to 5 
minutes. 

 
1.4 The Traffic Regulation Order Panel is also responsible for considering written 

representations made in respect of proposed public spaces protection orders and it is 
recommended that the same procedure of public speaking be introduced for dealing with 
them.  

 
2 Options/Alternatives 
 
2.1 Option 1: to approve the recommendation and introduce a procedure for public speaking 

at Traffic Regulation Order Panel meetings 
 
2.2 Option 2: Not to approve the recommendation 
 
3 Preferred Option 
 
3.1 The preferred option is to adopt the procedure for public speaking detailed in Appendix 1 

as it will provide clarity and enhance the involvement of the public in the traffic regulation 

Page 4



 

  3 

order process.  If adopted, the procedure will be included in Part 8 (Appendices) of the 
Constitution at Appendix 3 – Protocols.  

 
4 Financial Implications  
 
4.1 This proposal is procedural in nature and, if approved, would give members of the public 

the right to speak at meetings of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel. As a consequence, 
there are no specific financial implications arising from this report. (Nigel Howard) 

 
5 Legal Services Comments 
 
5.1 The proposals will need to be approved by full Council as they involve an amendment to 

the Constitution. (A Evans) 
 
6. Co-operative Agenda 
 
6.1 There are no co-operative issues or opportunities arising from the report.   
 
7 Human Resources Comments 
 
7.1 Not applicable 
 
8 Risk Assessments 
 
8.1 Not applicable 
 
9 IT Implications 
 
9.1 None 
 
10 Property Implications 
 
10.1 None 
 
11 Procurement Implications 
 
11.1 None 
 
12 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
12.1 None 
 
13 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
13.1 None 
 
14  Implications for Children and Young People 
 
14.1 None 
 
15 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
15.1  No  
 
16 Key Decision 
 

Page 5



 

  4 

16.1 No   
 
17 Key Decision Reference 
 
17.1 N/A 
 
18 Background Papers 
 
18.1 the following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 

with the requirements of section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not 
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by 
the Act. 

 
 None  

 
19 Appendices  
 
19.1 Appendix 1 - Consideration of proposed traffic regulation orders by the Traffic Regulation  
  Order Panel– public participation  

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Consideration of proposed traffic regulation orders by the Traffic Regulation Order 
Panel– public participation 
 
Anyone who makes representations in respect of a proposed traffic regulation order will be 
notified in advance by Unity Highways, Traffic Section of the date of the Traffic Regulation 
Order Panel at which those representations will be considered.  Persons who made 
representations which are to be considered by the Traffic Order Panel, either for or against 
a proposed traffic regulation order, may speak in support of their representations at the 
Panel.  Persons who have not made representations in respect of a proposed traffic 
regulation order will not be permitted to speak at the Panel meeting considering that 
proposed order. 
 
The agenda for consideration by the Panel will be published on the Council’s website five 
working days before the meeting. Please contact Constitutional Services using the email 
address or phone number on the agenda if you wish to speak, stating whether your 
representation is in support of or objection to the proposal. Requests to speak must be 
received no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
The procedure will also be followed in respect of written representations made in respect 
of proposed public spaces protection orders which are considered by the Traffic 
Regulation Order Panel. 
 
Procedure Notes to all Speakers 
1.  The number of speakers will be limited to two, namely a person who made 

representations against the proposed traffic regulation order or a representative of 
those who made representations against the proposed order and a person (if any) 
who made representations in favour of the proposed order or a representative of 
those who made representations in favour of the proposed order.  Ward Councillors 
may also speak on a proposed traffic regulation order in their ward. 

Page 6



 

  5 

2.  It is important to inform Constitutional Services as soon as possible if you wish to 
speak to the Traffic Regulation Order Panel meeting since only the first person to do 
so will normally be invited to speak. 

3.  Speakers will be allowed to speak for up to 3 minutes to state their case. This time 
period will be strictly enforced. Speakers should make comments only in support of 
the representations they have previously made, and not ask questions of officers or 
Panel Members. 

4.  Where there are a number of objectors to the proposed traffic regulation order, a 
representative should be nominated to speak, failing which the first person to have 
informed Constitutional Services of a wish to speak, will be invited to speak to the 
Panel. 

5.  The public speaking procedure does not allow electronic video presentations or 
distribution of letters/statements/photographs, etc. to Members of the Traffic 
Regulation Order Panel immediately before or during the meeting. 

6. Ward Members will be allowed to speak for up to 5 minutes and should make 
comments only and not ask questions of officers or Panel Members 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
To seek approval to the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order for Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton at Broadway, 
Chadderton as detailed in the report. 
 
Executive Summary 
The Council has received an application from Countryside Properties, Great Places 
Housing Association and FO Developments to facilitate the proposed residential 
development of up to 160 affordable dwellings.  Planning Ref: FUL/345659/20 (Approved 3 
June 2021). 
 
Consultations with user groups over the application did not result in any objections. 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Council make a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order for the diversion of Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton under 
Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and section 53A of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 as detailed in the report and officers be authorised to carry out 
the necessary procedures with a view to confirming the Order in the event that no 
objections are made to the Order. 

Report  to TRO Panel 

 
Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order  
 
S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - 
Diversion of Definitive Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 
Chadderton, at Broadway, Chadderton, and 
s53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 
Modification of the Definitive Map and Statement 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor A Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
 
Officer Contact:  Deputy Chief Executive – People and Place 
 
Report Author: Liam Kennedy, PRoW Officer 
Ext. 4306 
 
25 November 2021 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

   

Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order 
S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Diversion of Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton 
at Broadway, Chadderton and s53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Modification of the 
Definitive Map and Statement 

 
1 Background 
  
1.1 The Application has been made by the 3 parties named above in relation to the proposed 

construction of a residential development of up to 160 residences of ‘affordable housing’ 
(FUL/345659/20). 

 
1.2 The Order-making and Confirming Authority are guided to authorise the diversion of any 

footpath if they are satisfied that it is necessary to do so in order for the development to be 
carried out in accordance with the granted planning permission. 

 
2 Proposal 
  
2.1 The route of Footpath 46 Chadderton is shown on attached plan (764/A4/225/1).  The path 

commences at point B south west of Chilton Avenue (approximately 147m from end of cul 
de sac) following a slight north-easterly route for approximately 157m where it meets 
Footpaths 44 (East) & 45 (West) Chadderton at point E.  The existing route runs through 
undeveloped land (i.e. fields).  The description of the current route is given in Schedule 1. 

 

2.2 The diverted path is also shown on the plan and follows points J-I-H-G-F-E.  The path then 
meets existing footpaths 44 (East) & 45 (West), Chadderton.  The description of the diverted 
route is given in Schedule 2. 

 
2.3 The route of Footpath 47 Chadderton is shown on attached plan (764/A4/225/1).  The path 

commences at point B south west of Chilton Avenue (approximately 147m from end of cul 
de sac) following a south easterly route for approximately 38m to point C, then proceeds 
east for approximately 162m to point D, joining Broadway, Chadderton.  The description of 
the current route is given in Schedule 1. 

 
2.4 The diverted path is also shown on the plan and follows points J-M-N-O-P-R-Q. The path 

then terminates at Broadway, Chadderton.  The description of the diverted route is given in 
Schedule 2. 

 
2.5 The route of Footpath 48 Chadderton is shown on the attached plan (764/A4/225/1).  The 

path commences at point A (approximately 170m west of the current convergence of 
Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 and proceeds east for approximately 170m to join Footpaths 46 & 47 
Chadderton at point B. 

 
2.6 The diverted path is also shown on the plan and follows points A-F-G-K-L-J.  The path then 

meets the proposed diverted Footpaths 46 & 47 at point J.  The description of the diverted 
route is given in Schedule 2. 

 
2.7 The existing alignment of the Footpaths would be directly affected by the housing 

development being constructed by the applicants. 
 
2.8 The required highway signage, from the metallised road and the way markers along the 

route will be paid for by the Applicant i.e. both installation, posts and the sign. 
 
2.9 If the order is confirmed it will be necessary to modify the Definitive Map and Statement for 

Footpaths 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton.  The Council have an obligation to continuously review 
the Map and Statement.  The Public Rights of Way (Combined Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2008 allow the Order-making Authority to make a Combined Order for a 
diversion proposal and Definitive Map and Statement Modification.  In light of the above it is 

Page 10



 

   

considered that this is appropriate in this case.  The current wording for the Definitive 
Statement is given in Schedule 3 and the amended wording is given in Schedule 4. 

 
 
  

Page 11



 

   

 

Page 12



 

   

 
 

 
 
 

Page 13



 

   

Schedule 1 
 

Description of Existing Footpath Routes – Drawing 764/A4/225/1 
 

Existing FP 46 Chadderton commences at point B (GR SD89918 04752) proceeding in a slight north-
easterly direction for a distance of approximately 160 metres to point E (GR SD89980 04899) 
meeting Footpaths 44 & 45 Chadderton. 
 
Existing FP 47 Chadderton commences at point B (GR SD89918 04752) following a south-easterly 
route for approximately 38m to point C (GR SD89946 04727) then proceeds east for approximately 
162m to point D (GR SD90109 04706) terminating at Broadway, Chadderton. 
 
Existing FP 48 Chadderton commences at point A (GR SD89751 04722) proceeding east for 
approximately 171m to point B (GR SD89918 04752) to meet existing FPs 46 & 47 Chadderton. 

 
 

Schedule 2 
 

Description of Proposed Diverted Footpath Routes – Drawing 764/A4/225/1 
 

Footpath 46 Chadderton commencing at point J (GR SD89910 04746) and proceeding for a distance 
of 54 metres in a slight north-easterly direction to point I (GR SD89928 04796) then turning to and 
proceeding in a north-westerly direction for a distance of 83 metres to point H (GR SD89868 04839) 
from where an anti-clockwise circular route is followed for a distance of 20 metres to point G (GR 
SD89849 04840), then heading north-west for a distance of 16 metres to point F (GR SD89840 
04853) finally heading north-east for a distance of 166 metres to point E (GR SD89980 04899) at 
the junction of existing footpaths 44 & 45 Chadderton for a total distance of 339 metres or 
thereabouts. This route follows the proposed layout of the estate roads in the FO Developments plan 
shown below. 
 
Footpath 47 Chadderton commencing at point J (GR SD89910 04746) and proceeding in a slightly 
south-easterly direction for a distance of 64 metres to point M (GR SD89971 04727) then heading 
in a north-easterly direction for a distance of 58 metres to point N (GR SD90013 04764). Turning 
and heading in a south-easterly direction for a distance of 45 metres to point O (GR SD90032 04725) 
then further south-east to a lesser degree for a distance of 52 metres to point P (GR SD90079 
04718). Proceeding further south-east for a distance of 28 metres to point R (GR SD90104 04707) 
then turning and proceeding north-east for a distance of 13 metres to point Q (GR SD90114 04716) 
rejoining Broadway, Chadderton for a total distance of 260 metres or thereabouts. This route follows 
the proposed layout of the estate roads in the FO Developments plan shown below. 
 
Footpath 48 Chadderton commencing at point A (GR SD89751 04720) and proceeding north and 
north-east for a distance of 169 metres to point F (GR SD89840 04853) then turning and heading 
south-east for a distance of 16 metres to point G (GR SD89849 04840). Proceed in an anti-clockwise 
semi-circular route heading south-west to south east for a distance of 22 metres to point K (GR 
SD89847 04820) then head south-east and south for a distance of 97 metres to point L (GR 
SD89885 04737) then slightly north-east for a distance of 27 metres to point J (GR SD89910 04746) 
at the junction of proposed diversions to footpaths 46 & 47 Chadderton, for a total distance of 331 
metres or thereabouts. This route follows the proposed layout of the estate roads in the FO 
Developments plan shown below. 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

   

Schedule 3 
 

Current Definitive Statement 
 

District and page 
number 

Page 
Number 

Status Length Description  

Chadderton 
Footpath 46 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chadderton 
Footpath 47 

 
 
 
 

Chadderton 
Footpath 48 

9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9-10 
 
 
 
 
 
9 

Footpath 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Footpath 
 
 
 
 
 

Footpath 

193 metres 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

209 metres 
 
 
 
 
 

418 metres 

From the 
junction of path 
Nos. 44 and 45 

to the junction of 
path Nos. 47 

and 48 
 

From the 
junction of path 
Nos. 46 and 48 

to Broadway 
 

From the 
junction of paths 
Nos. 46 and 47 
to Foxdenton 

Lane 

 

 
 

Schedule 4 
 

Modification of Definitive Statement 
   

District and 
page number 

Page 
Number 

Status Length Description Comments 

Chadderton 
Footpath 46 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Footpath 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

339 
metres 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Footpath commencing at 
junction with FP47 & 48 
CHADD (GR SD89910 
04746) and proceeding for a 
distance of 54 metres in a 
slight north-easterly direction 
following estate road to GR 
SD89928 04796, then 
proceeding in a north-
westerly direction for a 
distance of 83 metres 
following estate road to  GR 
SD89868 04839 from where 
an anti-clockwise circular 
route is followed for a 
distance of 20 metres to GR 
SD89849 04840, then 
heading north-west for a 
distance of 16 metres to GR 
SD89840 04853, finally 
heading north-east for a 
distance of 166 metres to GR 
SD89980 04899 at the 
junction of existing footpaths 
44 & 45 Chadderton.  
 

Min. width 
1 metre 

Page 15



 

   

Chadderton 
Footpath 47 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chadderton 
Footpath 48 

9-10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
 

Footpath 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Footpath 

260 
metres 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
503 
metres 

Footpath commencing at GR 
SD89910 04746 and 
proceeding in a slightly south-
easterly direction following 
estate road for a distance of 
64 metres to GR SD89971 
04727, then heading in a 
north-easterly direction for a 
distance of 58 metres 
following estate road to GR 
SD90013 04764, then turning 
and heading in a south-
easterly direction for a 
distance of 45 metres 
following estate road to GR 
SD90032 04725, then further 
south-east to a lesser degree 
for a distance of 52 metres 
following estate road to GR 
SD90079 04718. Proceeding 
further south-east for a 
distance of 28 metres 
following estate road to GR 
SD90104 04707, then turning 
and proceeding north-east for 
a distance of 13 metres to GR 
SD90114 04716 joining 
Broadway, Chadderton. 
 
Footpath commencing at the 
junction of FPs 46 & 47 
CHADD GR SD89910 04746 
proceeding south-west for a 
distance of 27 metres 
following estate road to GR 
SD89885 04737, then 
proceeding north and north-
west for a distance of 97 
metres following estate road 
to GR SD89847 04820, then 
in a clockwise semi-circular 
route proceeding north-west 
to north-east for a distance of 
22 metres to GR SD89849 
04840, then turning and 
heading north-west for a 
distance of 16 metres to GR 
SD89840 04853, then 
proceeding in a general 
south-westerly direction for a 
distance of 169 metres to GR 
SD89751 04720, proceeding 
further slightly north-west for a 
distance of 101 metres to 
Foxdenton Farm (GR 
SD89650 04744), then 
proceeding south-west for a 

Page 16



 

   

distance of approx. 100 
metres to join Foxdenton 
Lane. 

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
  
3.1 Option 1: To approve the recommendation. 

 
3.2 Option 2: Not to approve the recommendation. 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 The Preferred option is to approve Option 1.  This will enable continued usage of the PRoW 

network whilst simultaneously facilitating the construction and development of affordable 
housing within the Borough. 

 
5 Informal Consultation 
 

Parish Council 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 

Footpath Societies 
5.2 The Ramblers Association and Peak and Northern Footpath Society have no objections to 

the proposal. 
 

Ward Councillors 
5.3 The Ward Councillors have been consulted and have the following comment: 

 
The footpath network across Foxdenton is an important means of maintaining access with 
other parts of Chadderton and a means of encouraging cycling and walking in order to 
support the green agenda.  Any measures to ensure that the network of footpaths continues 
to exist whilst the house building programme is also being developed is essential. 

 
Landowners 

5.4 The only affected landowner is the applicant. 
 

6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 The applicant paid the standard Stopping Up fee of £2,685 on 11 August 2021.  This fee 

covers all costs associated with this order including, advertising, site notices and 
administration incurred by the Council.  (Nigel Howard) 

 
7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables the Council to authorise 

the stopping up or diversion of any footpath or bridleway if it is satisfied that it is necessary 
to stop up or divert the footpath or bridleway in order to enable development to be carried 
out in accordance with planning permission granted under the Act.  In the event of objections 
the application will be referred to the Secretary of State who must be satisfied that it is 
necessary to stop up or divert the footpath or bridleway and who has a discretion as to 
whether to confirm the stopping up/diversion.  In the exercise of that discretion the Secretary 
of State is obliged to take into account any significant disadvantages or losses flowing 
directly from the stopping up/diversion which have been raised and must also take into 
account any countervailing advantages to the public, along with the planning benefits and 
the degree of importance attached to the development.  He must then decide whether any 
such disadvantages or losses are of such significance or seriousness that he should refuse 
to confirm the stopping up/diversion.  (A Evans) 

Page 17



 

   

 
8 Co-operative Agenda 
 
8.1 Not applicable. 
 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8 Risk Assessments 
 
8.1 None 
 
9 IT Implications 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10 Property Implications 
 
10.1 None. 
 
11 Procurement Implications 
 
11.1 None. 
 
12 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
12.1 None. 
 
13 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
13.1 None 
 
14 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
14.1  Not Applicable 
 
15 Key Decision 
 
15.1 No. 
 
16 Key Decision Reference 
 
16.1 Not applicable. 
 
17 Background Papers 
 
17.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not include 
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act: 

 
 None. 

 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Public Speaking at Traffic Regulation Order Panel Meetings
	7 S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990, S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 , Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map and Statement Modification order. FPs 46, 47 & 48 Chadderton.

